Final Order No. DOH-05-0181- ]-

STATE OF FLORIDA FILED DATE - ;zm
BOARD OF MEDICINE Department of Hea
By: L
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, Deputy Agency Clerk
Petitioner,
vs. DOH CASE NO.: 2000-04575

LICENSE NO.: ME0014696

JOHN T. RENICK, M.D.,

Respondent.

/

FINAL ORDER

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board)
pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(2), Florida Statutes, on
February 4, 2005, in Miami, Florida, for consideration of the
Administrative Complaint (attached hereto as Exhibit A) in the
above-styled cause pursuant to Respondent’s Election of Rights.
At the hearing, Petitioner was represented by Denise O’Brien,
Assistant General Counsel. Respondent was not present and was
not represented by counsel at the meeting. The facts are not in
dispute.

Upon consideration, it is ORDERED:

1. The allegations of fact set forth in the Administrative
Complaint are approved and adopted and incorporated herein by
reference as the findings of fact by the Board.

2. The conclusions of law alleged and set forth in the
Administrative Complaint are approved and adopted and
incorporated herein by reference as the conclusions of law by the

Board.




3. The violations set forth warrant disciplinary action by
the Board. THEREFORE,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED:

Respondent’s license to practice medicine in the State of
Florida is hereby REVOKED.

(NOTE: SEE ATTACHMENT “A” FOR STANDARD TERMS APPLICABLE TO
ALL FINAL ORDERS. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY FINAL ORDER,
THE STANDARD TERMS SET FORTH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE OF
ALL PENALTIES CONTAINED IN THIS FINAL ORDER.)

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with the
Clerk of the Department of Health.

DONE AND ORDERED this / 7 day ot TEBRAYL
Fd

2005.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

A,

Larry MtPherson, Jr., EXedative Director
for Ldurie K. Davies, M.D., Chair

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW

A PARTY WHO IS ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THIS FINAL ORDER IS
ENTITLED TO JUDICIAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA
STATUTES. REVIEW PROCEEDINGS ARE GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES OF
APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY FILING
ONE COPY OF A NOTICE OF APPEAL WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND A SECOND COPY, ACCOMPANIED BY FILING
FEES PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIRST
DISTRICT, OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE
DISTRICT WHERE THE PARTY RESIDES. THE NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE
FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF THE ORDER TO BE
REVIEWED.




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the
foregoing Final Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to JOHN T.
RENICK, M.D., 219 Forest Park Circle, Panama City, Florida 32405;
and 2739 Jenks Avenue, Panama City, Florida 32405; to Ronald
Johnson, Esquire, 438 East Government Street, Post Office Box
12686, Pensacola, Florida 32591-2686; and by interoffice delivery
to Denise O’Brien and Dana Baird, Department of Health, 4052 Bald
Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, Talla//jf , Florida 32399-3265 this

[2ﬁ¢{ day of }:-

2005.

(L fa)ipnda J«Q

Deputy Agency Clerk

P:\Users\ADMIN\NANCY\MED\ORD\Feb2005\RenickInf .wpd




STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,

PETITIONER,
V. CASE NO. 2000-04575
JOHN T. RENICK, M.D.,

RESPONDENT.
/

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT
COMES NOW Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its
undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the
Board of Medicine against Respondent, John T. Renick, M.D., and in
support thereof alleges: |
1.  Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the
practice of medicine pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter
456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes.
2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a
licensed physician within the State of Florida, having been issued license

number ME 14696.



3. Respondent’s address of record is 219 Forest Park Circle,

Panama City, Florida 32405.

4. On or about January 1995, Respondent was appointed Medical
Director at Rivendell of Fort Walton Beach, a psychiatric hospital located in
Fort Walton Beach, Florida, that participates in the Medicare program, and
at Rivendell of Bay County, a provider of services to Medicare, CHAMPUS,
and Blue Cross located in Bay County, Florida.

5.  On or about July 15, 1998, Respondent was charged by a
thirty-eight (38) count indictment, in case number 3:98CR63-002RYV in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Florida, “with one (1) count
of conspiracy to defraud Florida health care programs, in violation of 18
U.S.C. § 371; fourteen (14) counts of wire fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C.
§6 1343 and 2; and twenty-three (23) counts of money laundering, in
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.”

6. The indictment alleged, among other things, that Respondent,
while he was excluded from the Medicare program, provided psychiatric
services at Rivendell of Fort Walton Beach and through Rivendel! of Bay

County to patients insured by Medicare, CHAMPUS, and other federal
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health care programs and fraudulently presented claims to those federal
health care programs.

7. On or about November 18, 1998, Respondent was found guilty
in case number 3:98CR63-002RV in the U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of Florida, “of one (1) count of conspiracy to defraud Florida health
care programs, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371; fourteen (14) counts of wire
fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343 and 2; and twenty-three (23)
counts of money laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(a)(1)(A)(i)
and 2."

8.  On or about June 22, 2000, Respondent was sentenced in case
number 3:98CR63-002RV in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District
of Florida.

9. The crimes of which the Respondent was found guilty and
convicted are crimes that occurred in the course of Respondent’s practice
of medicine. Therefore, the crimes are directly related to the practice of
medicine or to the ability to practice medicine.

10. The qualities that are essential to the practice of medicine
include reliability, honesty, and good moral character. The crimes of which

Respondent was found guilty and convicted demonstrate that Respondent
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lacks these essential qualities. By demonstrating that Respondent lacks
these essential qualities, Respondent’s crime relates to the ability to
practice medicine by showing that he is not worthy to be entrusted with
the privileges and authority vested in those who are licensed to practice
medicine.

11. Section 458.331(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2000), provides that
being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of nolo contendere to,
regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which directly relates
to the practice of medicine or to the ability to practice medicine constitutes
grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of Medicine.

12. Respondent’s June 22, 2000 conviction in the U.S. District Court
for the Northern District of Florida of conspiracy to defraud Florida health
care programs, wire fraud and money laundering directly relates to his
practice of medicine and to his ability to practice medicine.

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section
458.331(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2000), by being convicted or found guilty
of, or entering a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a
crime in any jurisdiction which directly relates to the practice of medicine or

to the ability to practice medicine.
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WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of

Medicine enter an order imposing one or more

of the following penalties:

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent’s license, restriction of

practice, imposition of an administrative fine,

issuance of a reprimand,

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the

Board deems appropriate.

SIGNED this l(gﬂ‘ day of g@{O&mé@f , 2004,

John O.

Agwunobi, M.D., M.B.A.

Secretary, Department of Health

WAk

Fl LED / Blake Hunter
DEPADH;?;S}HJ o'O_F-‘E :ﬁALTH sistant General Counsel
OH Prosecution Services Unit

cuenkhlandher Coloman 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65

DATE___9q-14-0 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265
Florida Bar No. 0570788
(850) 414-8126
(850) 414-1989 FAX

/jbh

PCP: September 10, 2004 |
PCP Members: Fuad Ashkar MD.(thairpersom),

Vammen ZachariahMD.adJod

Reviewed and approved by: - (initials) j}\ig{. o« (date)
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57,
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested.

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter.
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs,
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed.
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ATTACHMENT A
STANDARD TERMS APPLICABLE TO ALL FINAL ORDERS

The following are the standard terms applicable to all Final;
Orders, including supervision and monitoring provisions
applicable to licensees on probation.

A. OMPLIAN WITH STA D W

Respondent shall comply with all state and federal statutes,
rules and regulations pertaining to the practice of
medicine, including Chapters 456, 458, B93, Florida
Statutes, and Rule Chapter 64B8, Florida Administrative
Code. If Respondent is subject to criminal probation,
Respondent shall comply with all terms and conditions of
said criminal probation.

B. PAYMENT OF FINES AND COSTS. Unless otherwise directed by
Final Order, all fines and costs shall be paid by check or
money order made payable to the Board and sent to DOH/Client
Services, P.0O. Box €320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320,
WITHEIN 30 DAYS OF THE FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER. The
Board/Compliance office does NOT have the authority to
change the terms of payment of any fine imposed by the
Board. |

C. ADDRESSES, Respondent must keep current residence and

| practice addresses on file with the Board. Respondent shall

notify the Compliance Office, in writing, within 10 days of

1



any changes of those addresses. Furthermore, if the
Respondent’s license is on probation, the Respondent shall
notify the Compliance Office within 10 days in the event

that Respondent leaves the active practice of medicine in
Florida.

COMPLIANCE ADDRESS, Unless otherwise directed, all reports,

correspondence and inguiries shall be sent to: DOH, Client
Services Unit, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C0l, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-3251, Attn: Medical Compliance Officer.
CONTINUITY OF PRACTICE
1. TOLLING PROVISIONS, In the event the Respondent leaves
the State of Florida for a period of 30 days or more or |
otherwise does not or may not engage in the active practice
of medicine in the State of Florida, then certain provisions
of ﬁhe requirements in the Final Order shall be tolled and
shall remain in a tolled status until Respondent returns to
the active practice of medicine in the State of Florida.
Respondent shall notify the Compliance Officer 10 days prior
to hi-fhor return to practice in the State of Florida.
Unless otherwise set forth in the Final Order, the following
requirements and only the following requirements shall be
tolled until the Respondent returns to active practice:

a. The time period of probation shall be tolled.

b. The provisions regarding supervision whether direct

2
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or indirect by the monitor/super§isor, and required
reports from the monitor/supervisor shall be tolled.
c. The regquirement for guality assurance review of
Respondent’s practice shall be tolled.
d. Any provisions regarding community service shall be
tolled.
e. Any requirements regarding lectures on the subject
of wrong-site surgery.
2. ACTIVE PRACTICE. In the event that Respondent leaves the
active practice of medicine for a period of one year or
more, the Resﬁondent may be required to appear before the
Board and demonstrate the ability to practice medicine with

reasonable skill and safety to patients prior to resuming

the practice of medicine in the State of Florida.

Unless

otherwise directed by Final Order, all community service
requirements, continuing education units/courses must be
completed, and documentation of such completion submitted to
DOH/Client Services, at the address set forth in paragraph
D., WITEIN 6NE YEAR OF THE DATE OF THE FINAL ORDER. |

1. DRFINITION OF COMMUNITY SERVICE, “Community

service” shall be defined as the delivery of medical
services directly to patients, or the delivery of

other volunteer services to an entity which is exempt




from federal taxation under 26 U.S.C. s. 501(c) (3),
without fee or cost to the patient or the entity, for
the good of the people of the State of Florida.
Community service shall be performed outside the
physician’s regular practice setting.
2. CONTINUING EDUCATION. Continuing education imposed
by Final Order shall be in addition to those hours
required for biennial renewal of licensure. Unless
otherwise approved by the Board or the Chairperson of
the Probation Committee, said continuing education
courses shall consist of a formal live lecture format,
G. PROBATION TERMS, If probation was imposed by the Final
Oxder, ﬁha fﬁllowing provisidns are applicable.
4. DEPINITIONS:
Mm is supervision by a monitoring
physician (monitor); as set forth in the Final Order,
whose responsibilities are set by the Board. Indirect
supervision does not regquire that the monitor practice
on the same premises as the Respondent. However, the
monitor shall practice within a reasonable geographic
proximity to Respondent, which shall be within 20
miles unless otherwise approved by the Board and sghall
be :eadily‘avaiiabie-for consultation. The monitor .

shall be board-certified in the Respondent’s specialty




area unless otherwise approved by the Board or its
designee.

L. DIRECT SUPERVISION is supervision by a supervising
physician (supervisor), as set forth in the PFinal
.Order, whose responsibilities are set by the Board.
Direct supervision requires that the supervisor and
Respondent work in the same office. The supervisor
shall be board-certified in the Respondent’s specialty
area unless otherwise approved by the Board or its
designee.

€. PROBATION COMMITTEE or “Committee” are members of
the Board of Medicine designated by the Chair of the
Board to serve as the Probation Committee.-

2. REQUIRED SUPERVISION,

a. If the terms of the Final Order include indirect
monitoring of the licensee’s practice (monitoring) or

direct monitoring of the licensee’s practice

(supervision), the Regpondent shall not practice

b. The monitor/supervisor must be licensed under

Chapter 458, Florida Statutes, in good standing, and

without restriction or limitation on his/her license.
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In addition, the Board or Committee may reject any
proposed monitor/supervisor on the basis that he/she °
has previously been subject to any disciplinary action
against his/her medical license in this or any other
Jjurisdiction, is currently under investigation, or is
the subject of a pending disciplinary action. The
monitor/supervisor must be actively engaged in the
same or similar specialty area unless otherwise
approved by the Board or Committee and be practicing
within a reasonable distance of the Respondent’s
practice, a distance of no more than 20 miles unless
otherwise specifically provided for in the Final
Order. The monitor/supervisor must not be a relative
or employee of the Respondent. The Board, Committee
or designee may also reject any proposed
monitor/supervisor for good cause shown.
QJ_IMM The Board confers authority

on the Chair of the Probation Committee to temporarily

.approve Respondent’s monitor/supervisor. To obtain

this temporary approval, Respondent shall submit to
the Compliance Officer the name and curriculum vitae
of the proposed monitor/supervisor. This information
shall be furnished to the Chair of the Probation

Committee by way of the Compliance Officer, within 48

6




hours after Respondent receives the Final Order in
this matter. This information may be faxed to the
Compliance Officer at (850) 414-0864, or may be sent
by overnight mail to the Compliance address as set
forth in paragraph D. above. In order to provide time
for Respondent’s proposed supervisory/monitoring
physician to be approved or disapproved by the Chair
of the Probation Committee, Respondent shall be
allowed to practice medicine while approval is being
sought, but only for a period of five working days
after Respondent receives the Final Oxrder. If
Respondent’s supervising/monitoring physician has not
been approved during that time frame, thén Respondent
shall cease practicing until such time as the
supervising/monitoring physician is temporarily
approved. In the event that the proposed
monitoring/supervising physician is not approved, then
Respondent shall cease practicing immediately. Should
Respondent’s monitoring/supervising physician be
approved, said approval shall only remain in effect

until the next meeting of the Probationer’s Committee.

approved, Temporary approval shall only remain in
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effect until the next meeting of the Probation

Committee.

4. FORMAL APPROVAL, Respondent shall have the
monitor/supervisor with him/her at the first probation
appearance before the Probation Committee. Pribr to
consideration of the monitor/supervisor by the
Committee, the Respondent shall provide the

monitor/supervisor a copy of the Administrative

Complaint and the Final Order in this case.
Respondent shall submit a current curriculum vitae, a
description of current practice, and a letter agreeing
to serve from the proposed monitor/supervisor to the
Compliance Officer no later than fourteen days before
the Respondent’s first scheduled probation appearance.
Respondent’s monitor/supervisor shall also appear
before the Probation Committee at such times as
directed by the Committee. It sﬁall be the
Respondent’s responsibility fo ensure the appearance
of his/her monitor/supervisor as directed. Failure of
the monitor/supervisor to appear as-directed shall
constitute a violation of the terms of the Final Order
and may subject the Respondent to additional
disciplinary action.

5. CEANGE IN MONITOR/SUPERVISOR. In the event that



PR T e p————

Respondent’s monitor/supervisor is unable or unwilling
to fulfill his/her responsibilities as a
monitor/supervisor as described above, the Respondent
shall immediately advise the Compliance Office of this
fact. Respondent shall immediately submit to the
Compliance Office the name of a temporary
monitor/supervisor for consideration. Respondent
ghall pot practice pending approval of thig temporary
mopitor/gupervigor by the Chair of the Probation
Committee, Furthermore, Respondent shall make
arrangements with his/her temporary monitcr/super#isar
to appear before the Probation Committee at its next
regulafly scheduled meeting for consideration of the
monitor/supervisor by the Committee. Respondent shall
only practice under the supervision of the temporary
monitor/supervisor (approved by the Chair) until the
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Probation
Committee whereat the issue of the Committee’'s
approval of the Respondent’s new monitor/supervisor
shall be addressed.

§. REPORTS,

a. If directed by Final Order, probation reports, in
affidavit form, shall be submitted by the Respondent

and shall contain the following:
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(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

(5)

(6)

Brief statement of why physician is on probation.

Practice location.

Describe current practice (type and composition).
Brief statement of compliance with probationary
terms.

Describe relationship with monitoring/supervising
physician.

Advise Compliance Officer of any problems
including office incident reports filed; loss or
restriction of hospital staff privileges; loss or
restriqtion of DEA registration; or any
Medicare/Medicaid program exclusions,

restrictions or limitations.

b. MONITOR/SUPERVISOR REPORTS. If directed by Final

Order, monitor/supervisor reports, in affidavit form

shall include the following:

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

Brief statement of why physician is on prnba;ian.
Description of probationer’s practice.

Brief statement of probationer’s compliance with
terms of probation.

Brief description of probationer’s relationship
with mﬁnitoring bhysician.

Detail any problems which may have arisen with

probationer.
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